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@ pakertilly

Report of Independent Auditors

The Board of Directors of

SAIF Corporation

The Secretary of State Audits Division of
The State of Oregon

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the statutory basis financial statements of SAIF Corporation (“SAIF”), which
comprise the statutory basis statements of admitted assets, liabilities, and capital and surplus, as of
December 31, 2024 and 2023, and the related statutory basis statements of operations, changes in
capital and surplus, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the statutory
basis financial statements.

In our opinion, the accompanying statutory basis financial statements referred to above present fairly,
in all material respects, the respective financial position of SAIF as of December 31, 2024 and 2023,
and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with
accounting practices prescribed or permitted by the Oregon Department of Consumer and Business
Services, Division of Financial Regulation.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America (GAAS). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
required to be independent of SAIF and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with
the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the statutory basis financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America, and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the statutory basis financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether
there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about SAIF’s
ability to continue as a going concern within one year after the date that the statutory basis financial
statements are available to be issued.

Baker Tilly Advisory Group, LP and Baker Tilly US, LLP, trading as Baker Tilly, are members of the global network of Baker Tilly
International Ltd., the members of which are separate and independent legal entities. Baker Tilly US, LLP is a licensed CPA firm that
provides assurance services to its clients. Baker Tilly Advisory Group, LP and its subsidiary entities provide tax and consulting services

to their clients and are not licensed CPA firms.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the statutory basis financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance
but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with GAAS will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or
in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the
financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, we
Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures
in the statutory basis financial statements.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of SAIF’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,
that raise substantial doubt about SAIF’s ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable
period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal
control-related matters that we identified during the audit.

Basis of Accounting

We draw attention to Note 2 of the statutory basis financial statements to meet the requirements of
the Oregon Department of Consumer and Business Services, Division of Financial Regulation, which
is a basis of accounting other than accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America, to meet the requirements of the Division of Financial Regulation of the State of Oregon. Our
opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.



Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinion on the statutory basis financial
statements as a whole. The summary investment schedule, supplemental investment risk
interrogatories, and general interrogatories (reinsurance) are presented for purposes of additional
analysis as required by the National Association of Insurance Commissioners, and are not a required
part of the statutory financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and
was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare
the basic financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied
in the audit of the statutory financial statements and certain additional procedures, including
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records
used to prepare the statutory basis financial statements or to the statutory basis financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all material
respects, in relation to the statutory basis financial statements as a whole.

Restriction of Use

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Directors and management
of SAIF Corporation, the Governor of the State of Oregon, the President of the Senate of the State of
Oregon, the Speaker of the House of Representatives of the State of Oregon, and the Division of
Financial Regulation of the Oregon Department of Consumer and Business Services, and is not
intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these specified parties.

77
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Portland, Oregon
July 29, 2025



SAIF CORPORATION

STATEMENTS OF ADMITTED ASSETS, LIABILITIES, AND CAPITAL AND SURPLUS—STATUTORY BASIS

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2024 and 2023
(In thousands)

ADMITTED ASSETS

CASH AND INVESTED ASSETS:
Bonds
Common stocks
Real estate investments
Real estate, net of accumulated depreciation of $31,282 and $28,084:
Properties occupied by SAIF
Cash, cash equivalents, and short-term investments
Other invested assets
Receivable for securities sold
Security lending reinvested collateral

Total cash and invested assets

Interest, dividends, and real estate income due and accrued

Premiums in course of collection

Premiums and installments booked but deferred and not yet due

Accrued retrospective premiums receivable

Reinsurance recoverables

Electronic data processing (EDP) equipment and operating software,
net of accumulated depreciation of $6,157 and $5,808

Due from Workers’ Compensation Division

Other assets

TOTAL
LIABILITIES AND CAPITAL AND SURPLUS

LIABILITIES:
Losses
Loss adjustment expenses
Other accrued expenses
Taxes, licenses, and fees
Unearned premiums
Advance premium
Amounts withheld or retained for account of others
Other liabilities
Unclaimed property
Payable for securities purchased
Payable for securities lending
Accrued retrospective premiums payable

Total liabilities

CAPITAL AND SURPLUS:
Assigned surplus - PERS unfunded actuarial liability
Unassigned surplus

Total capital and surplus

TOTAL

See notes to financial statements—statutory basis.

2024 2023
3,770,280 $ 3,693,624
524,180 521,906
249,675 258,832
83,213 86,411
55,152 56,954
16,307 16,310

- 1,028
135,641 65,366
4,834,448 4,700,431
36,673 33,000
6,206 7,840
299,243 315,760
42,446 23,815
2,218 2,280
938 1,365
8,357 9,865
33,598 33,126
5,264,127 $ 5,127,482
2,205,196 $ 2,128,393
430,831 391,772
58,535 59,977
45,471 46,063
249,506 258,526
10,840 10,333
37,330 36,374
2,805 4,764
1,840 2,143

44 -
135,615 65,353
8,331 9,401
3,186,344 3,013,099
120,700 72,700
1,957,083 2,041,683
2,077,783 2,114,383
5,264,127 $ 5,127,482




SAIF CORPORATION

STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CAPITAL AND SURPLUS—STATUTORY BASIS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023

(In thousands)

UNDERWRITING REVENUES—Premiums earned, net

UNDERWRITING EXPENSES:
Losses incurred, net
Loss adjustment expenses incurred
Other underwriting expenses incurred

Total underwriting expenses
NET UNDERWRITING (LOSS)

NET INVESTMENT INCOME:
Net investment income earned
Net realized investment gains (losses)

Net investment income

OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE):
Net loss from premium balances charged off
Other income

Total other income (expense), net
Net income before dividends to policyholders
POLICYHOLDER DIVIDENDS
NET LOSS

CAPITAL AND SURPLUS:
Total capital and surplus—beginning of year

Net income (loss)
Change in net unrealized capital gains
Change in nonadmitted assets

Change in net unrealized capital losses

Total capital and surplus—end of year

See notes to financial statements—statutory basis.

2024 2023
$ 605,093 $ 590,847
474,469 413,090
159,747 125,785
177,706 166,827
811,922 705,702
(206,829) (114,855)
168,684 159,277
34,185 (39,878)

202,869

119,399

(2,579) (1,563)

1,371 1,249

(1,208) (314)

(5,168) 4,230
(59,938) (134,986)

$ (65,106) $ (130,756)

$ 2,114,383

(65,106)
17,534

10,973
(36,599)

$ 2,077,783

$ 2,180,169

(130,756)
63,580

1,390
(65,786)

$ 2,114,383



SAIF CORPORATION

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS—STATUTORY BASIS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023
(In thousands)

2024 2023
CASH FROM (USED IN) OPERATIONS:
Cash from underwriting:
Premiums collected, net of reinsurance $ 594,037 $ 576,869
Net investment income 171,305 166,968
Net cash from underwriting 765,342 743,837
Miscellaneous income (expense) (1,208) (314)
Benefits and loss related payments (397,604) (377,004)
Underwriting expenses paid (289,476) (262,247)
Policyholder dividend payments (59,938) (134,986)
Net cash from (used in) operations 17,116 (30,714)
CASH FROM (USED IN) INVESTMENTS:
Proceeds from investments sold, matured, or repaid:
Bonds 918,383 812,455
Common stocks 80,201 236
Other invested assets (69,603) (14,435)
Cash and short-term investments 3 (4)
Miscellaneous payments 1,028 (86)
Total proceeds from investments sold, matured, or repaid 930,012 798,166
Cost of investments acquired:
Bonds 1,017,711 746,111
Common stocks 194 -
Real estate investments 2,500 2,568
Other invested assets (70,262) (15,079)
Miscellaneous receipts (44) 7
Total cost of investments acquired 950,099 733,607
Net cash from (used in) investments (20,087) 64,559
CASH FROM (USED IN) FINANCING AND MISCELLANEOUS SOURCES:
Other cash provided 200 (8,458)
Other cash applied 969 (5,661)
Net cash from (used in) financing and miscellaneous sources 1,169 (14,119)
RECONCILIATION OF CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS, AND SHORT-TERM
INVESTMENTS—Net increase (decrease) in cash, cash equivalents, and
short-term investments (1,802) 19,726
CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS, AND SHORT-TERM INVESTMENTS—Beginning of year 56,954 37,228
CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS, AND SHORT-TERM INVESTMENTS—End of year $ 55,152 $ 56,954

See notes to financial statements—statutory basis.

Supplemental schedule of noncash transactions:

Noncash investment transactions were $37.8 million and $45.3 million for both investment acquisitions and
dispositions resulting from exchange transactions for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023,
respectively. During 2023, one real estate fund totaling $120.6 million which was previously classified as
common stock went through a restructuring, and now both funds are included in other invested assets.



SAIF CORPORATION

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—STATUTORY BASIS
AS OF AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023

1. NATURE OF OPERATIONS

SAIF Corporation (SAIF) is a public corporation created by an act of the Oregon Legislature. It
traces its origins to 1914 when its predecessor organization commenced business.

SAIF is an insurance company authorized to write workers’ compensation coverage in Oregon
and is a servicing carrier for accounts in the assigned risk pool. SAIF also provides coverage
governed by the Longshore and Harbor Workers” Compensation Act, Jones Act, and Federal
Employers Liability Law. SAIF partners with Zurich Insurance Group Ltd. (Zurich) and Acrisure
United States Insurance Services (USIS) to provide other states coverage. SAIF’'s Board of
Directors is appointed by the governor of the State of Oregon and consists of Oregon business
and community leaders not otherwise in the employ of SAIF. Certain members of SAIF’s Board
of Directors are SAIF policyholders or are employed by SAIF policyholders. The transactions
between SAIF and these policyholders were within SAIF’s standard terms and conditions.

SAIF writes business on a direct basis as well as through agents. Premiums written on a direct
basis were 16.8 percent and 16.9 percent of standard premium during 2024 and 2023,
respectively. SAIF issues workers’ compensation insurance policies to individual Oregon
employers including state agencies.

The Oregon Department of Consumer and Business Services (DCBS) enforces workers’
compensation laws under the Oregon Revised Statutes (ORS). Under the reporting
requirements of DCBS, Division of Financial Regulation (Insurance Division), SAIF is subject to
Risk Based Capital (RBC) requirements of the National Association of Insurance Commissioners
(NAIC), which establishes that certain amounts of capital and surplus be maintained. SAIF's
Company Action Level (CAL) RBC calculated minimum capital and surplus amount was $427.5
million and $435.2 million at December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively. At December 31,
2024 and 2023, the statutory capital and surplus of SAIF exceeded the minimum RBC
requirements. While SAIF is not subject to the minimum capital and surplus requirements set
forth in ORS 731.554, SAIF uses various benchmarking and risk level techniques to monitor
and maintain an adequate level of capital and surplus.

Surplus is deemed adequate to protect the Industrial Accident Fund. No significant changes in
current operations are anticipated. However, significant declines in investment values or
adverse loss reserve development could significantly erode surplus in future years.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of accounting—SAIF prepares its financial statements—statutory basis in conformity
with accounting practices prescribed or permitted by the Insurance Division. The Insurance

Division requires that insurance companies domiciled in the State of Oregon prepare their
financial statements—statutory basis in accordance with the NAIC Accounting Practices and
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Procedures Manual—version effective March 2024 and 2023, subject to any deviations
prescribed or permitted by the Insurance Division.

Accounting practices and procedures of the NAIC as prescribed or permitted by the Insurance
Division comprise a comprehensive basis of accounting other than accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP). The more significant differences
are as follows:

(a)

(b)

()

(d)

(e)

(f)

(9)

(h)

Investments in bonds are generally carried at amortized cost, while under GAAP they are
carried at fair value with changes in fair value recorded as investment income (loss).

Changes in the fair value of common stock are charged directly to capital and surplus,
whereas, under GAAP, changes in fair value are recorded as investment income (loss).

Changes in fair value for investments considered to be other-than-temporarily impaired
(OTTI) are recognized as realized losses, while under GAAP they are recorded as
investment income (loss).

Assets are reported under Statutory Accounting Principles (SAP) at “admitted asset” value
and “nonadmitted” assets are excluded through a charge against capital and surplus,
while under GAAP such assets are reinstated to the balance sheet, net of any valuation
allowance. The statutory Statement of Concepts states that assets that cannot be used to
fulfill policyholder obligations or are subject to third party interests shall not be recognized
on the Statements of Admitted Assets, Liabilities, and Capital and Surplus. Nonadmitted
assets include such assets as premiums receivable past due for more than ninety days,
furniture and equipment, and application software.

Short-term investments include securities with maturities, at the time of acquisition, of
one year or less, while under GAAP short-term investments have maturities of over 90
days but less than one year.

Cumulative effects of changes in accounting are reported as an adjustment to surplus in
the period of the change in accounting principle.

A liability for reinsurance balances is provided for unsecured unearned premiums, unpaid
losses ceded to reinsurers unauthorized by license to assume such business, and certain
overdue reinsurance balances. Changes in those amounts are credited and charged
directly to unassigned surplus.

The statements of cash flows differ in certain respects from the presentation required by
GAAP, including the presentation of the changes in cash and short-term investments
instead of cash and cash equivalents and the absence of a reconciliation between net
income and cash provided by operating activities. Under SAP, SAIF offsets accounts with
negative cash balances with accounts with positive balances instead of presenting
negative balances as short-term liabilities.

Accounting for the multiple employer benefit plan differs from SAP to GAAP accounting.
SAIF participates in a cost-sharing multiemployer defined benefit pension plan
administered by the Oregon Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) (see Note 10).
PERS has a net Unfunded Actuarial Liability (UAL) which represents the estimated
unfunded pension benefits. GAAP accounting requires the UAL to be recorded as a liability
while SAP does not allow for recording of the UAL as a liability. Instead for SAP, SAIF
established a special surplus fund in 2017 to identify its portion of the PERS UAL and has
adjusted the fund based on an allocation provided by PERS as of June 30, 2024 and 2023.
Due to the timing delay, SAIF has evaluated subsequent events that may impact the
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assets and liabilities of the plan and determined that the valuation of liability is still
materially accurate. Based on this information, the special surplus fund for the unfunded
pension benefits was $120.7 million and $72.7 million at December 31, 2024 and 2023,
respectively.

(j) On December 30, 2019, SAIF funded a PERS side account totaling $97.0 million which
represented approximately 90 percent of SAIF's UAL based on a preliminary actuarial
valuation from PERS (See Note 10). This side account does not impact employee benefits
received under PERS; instead, it represents a prepayment of SAIF's on-going
contributions. On SAIF’'s GAAP statements, this balance is subject to a different
amortization period and is grouped with deferred outflows as a difference between
employer contributions and employer’s proportionate share of system contributions.

(k) GAAP requires lessees to recognize a lease liability and an intangible asset while lessors
are required to recognize lease receivables and a deferred inflow of resources on their
financial statements for the value of payments expected to be made during the lease
term. Similar amounts are recognized for the value of Subscription Based Information
Technology Arrangements (SBITAs). SAP records an income or expense in the period the
lease payments are made.

(D GAAP requires that liabilities for compensated absences be recognized for (1) leave that
has not been used and (2) leave that has been used but not yet paid in cash or settled
through noncash means. A liability should be recognized for leave that has not been used
if (@) the leave is attributable to services already rendered, (b) the leave accumulates,
and (c) the leave is more likely than not to be used for time off or otherwise paid in cash
or settled through noncash means. Statutory Accounting accrues compensated absences
only for leave that is paid out upon termination (vacation) while GAAP accrues the cash
and noncash portions.

Investments—Bonds and short-term investments not backed by mortgages or other assets
are generally carried at amortized cost using the scientific interest method. Noninvestment
grade bonds (NAIC designation 3 to 6) are carried at the lower of amortized cost or fair value.
There were no bonds held by SAIF which were in or near default at December 31, 2024 and
2023. Residential and commercial mortgage-backed securities are carried at the lower of
amortized cost or fair value based on the financial model provided by the NAIC. Other asset-
backed securities are carried at either amortized cost (NAIC designation 1 and 2) or the lower
of amortized cost or fair value (NAIC designation 3 to 6). Premiums and discounts on
mortgage-backed bonds and structured securities are amortized using the retrospective
method based on anticipated prepayments at the date of purchase. Prepayment assumptions
are obtained from Bloomberg. Changes in estimated cash flows from the original purchase
assumptions are accounted for using the retrospective method. The prospective method is
used for securities recognized as OTTI, when collection of all contractual cash flows is not
probable. Interest-only securities and securities where the yield has become negative are
valued using the prospective method.

Common stocks are carried at fair value. The change in the stated value is recorded as a
change in net unrealized capital gains (losses), a component of unassigned surplus.

Investments in real estate funds held by limited partnerships are valued using net asset value
(NAV). The change in the stated value is recorded as a change in net unrealized capital gains
(losses), a component of unassigned surplus.

The fair values for investment securities for 2024 and 2023 were obtained from
Intercontinental Exchange, Refinitiv, JPM Direct, and Bloomberg. Equity securities traded on a
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national exchange are valued at the last reported sales price. Debt securities are valued using
evaluated bid prices at December 31, 2024 and 2023.

For all investments, impairments are recorded in the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and
Capital and Surplus when it is determined that the decline in fair value of an investment below
its amortized cost is other-than-temporary. The measurement of OTTI for equity securities,
bonds, and securities not backed by other assets is measured by the difference between
amortized cost and fair value. OTTI for mortgage and other asset-backed securities is based
upon the difference between amortized cost and future projected discounted cash flows. SAIF
considers several factors in determining if an impairment is OTTI, including the extent and
duration of impairment, the financial condition and short-term prospects of the issuer, cash
flows of underlying collateral for mortgage and other asset-backed securities, SAIF’s ability to
hold the investment to allow for any anticipated recovery in value, as well as management’s
intent to sell the investment. OTTI changes are reflected in net realized investment gains
(losses). The cost basis of the investment is then adjusted to reflect the OTTI.

Net investment income earned consists primarily of interest and dividends less investment
expenses. Interest income is recognized on an accrual basis, and dividends are recorded as
earned at the ex-dividend date. Interest income on mortgage-backed and asset-backed
securities is determined using the effective yield method based on estimated principal
prepayments. Accrual of income is suspended for bonds and mortgage loans that are in default
or when the receipt of interest payments is in doubt. Realized capital gains and losses are
determined on a specific identification basis.

Investment income due and accrued with amounts over 90 days past due is nhonadmitted. At
December 31, 2024 and 2023, no accrued interest or other investment income due and
accrued was required to be nonadmitted.

SAIF’s policy requires a minimum of 102 percent of the fair value of securities purchased under
repurchase agreements to be maintained as collateral. The collateral securities are held at
State Street Bank and Trust Company (State Street). There were no securities purchased
under repurchase agreements at December 31, 2024 and 2023.

Cash, cash equivalents, and short-term investments—SAIF places its temporary cash
investments with the Oregon Short-Term Fund (OSTF). The OSTF is a cash and investment
pool that operates as a demand deposit account. As a result, SAIF’s investment is not
impacted by changes in the market value of the OSTF. By statute, the OSTF may hold
securities with maturities no greater than three years. Audited financial statements and
monthly compliance summaries, which include information about the OSTF’s maturity
distribution and credit quality, may be obtained at the Oregon State Treasury’s web site:
https://www.oregon.gov/treasury/public-financial-services/oregon-short-term-
funds/pages/default.aspx. As of December 31, 2024 and 2023, SAIF’s balance in the OSTF was
$39.1 million and $35.5 million, respectively.

Oregon’s State Treasurer employs the services of two external investment managers to
manage SAIF’s fixed income portfolios. The cash balances of the fixed income managers are
invested in money market funds with the objective of maximizing current income while
maintaining a stable net asset value. The average maturity of the Institutional U.S.
Government Money Market Fund as of December 31, 2024 and 2023, was 40 days and 46
days, respectively. The Institutional U.S. Government Money Market Fund had a credit quality
rating of AAAm as of December 31, 2024 and 2023. At December 31, 2024 and 2023, SAIF's
balance in the Institutional U.S. Government Money Market Fund was $13.1 million and $4.1
million, respectively. There were no Treasury bills held as of December 31, 2024. As of
December 31, 2023, SAIF held $15.0 million in Treasury bills.
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Concentrations of credit risk—Financial instruments, which potentially subject SAIF to
concentrations of credit risk, consist principally of temporary cash investments and debt
securities. SAIF places its investment securities with financial institutions approved by the
State of Oregon and limits the amount of credit exposure to any one financial institution.
Concentrations of credit risk with respect to investments in debt securities are limited due to
the large number of such investments and their distribution among many different industries
and geographic regions.

Property and equipment—Property and equipment, both admitted and nonadmitted, are
recorded at cost, less accumulated depreciation. Maintenance, repairs, and minor renovations
are charged to expense as costs are incurred. Upon retirement or sale, any resulting gain or
loss is included as a component of net income. Property and equipment are depreciated using
the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

Useful
Life
Buildings and improvements 15-50 years
Furniture, equipment, and automobiles 3-7 years
Operating and nonoperating system software 3-5 years

Total depreciation and amortization expense for both admitted and nonadmitted property,
equipment, and software was $14.1 million and $11.9 million at December 31, 2024 and 2023,
respectively.

SAIF has several capital projects in progress or completed during the years ended December
31, 2024 and 2023. These include a new claims system, a registration and profile
management system phase II, and a digital payment project. The table below shows the total
costs incurred on these projects for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023.

The projects costs are displayed in the table below (in thousands):

2024 2023
Year-to-date Life-to-date Year-to-date Life-to-date
HR core system $ - $ 3,032 $ 162 $ 3,032
Claims system $ 2,767 $ 38,907 $ 8,175 $ 36,140
RPM phase I $ - $ 950 $ 380 $ 950
RPM phase I $ 67 $ 787 $ 720 $ 720
Digital payment $ 866 $ 1,838 $ 972 $ 972

Premiums—Premiums are based on individual employers’ reported payroll using
predetermined, DCBS-approved insurance rates based on employee risk classifications and are
recognized as income on a pro rata basis over the coverage period, which is generally one
year. Ceded premiums are recognized consistent with the underlying policies. The portion of
premiums that will be earned in the future are deferred and reported as unearned premiums.

Policyholders’ premiums due to SAIF are recorded as premiums receivable, net of the
allowance for uncollectible accounts. Premiums receivable consists of both billed amounts
(recorded as premiums in course of collection) and unbilled amounts (recorded as premiums
and installments booked but deferred and not yet due). Unbilled premiums receivable primarily
represents premiums recorded as written at the policy inception date and not yet billed, as
well as an estimate of the difference between amounts earned ratably on installment-billed
policies and the amount billed on the policy. Unbilled premiums receivable also includes
estimated billings on payroll reporting policies that were earned but not billed prior to year
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end. SAIF uses its historical experience to estimate earned but unbilled amounts, which are
recorded as premiums receivable. These unbilled amounts are estimates, and while SAIF
believes such amounts are reasonable, there can be no assurance the amounts ultimately
received will equal the recorded unbilled amounts. The ultimate collectability of the unbilled
premiums receivable can be affected by general changes in the economy and the regulatory
environment due to the increased time required to determine the billable amount. SAIF
considers these factors when estimating the premium receivable for unbilled premiums.
Unbilled premiums receivable at December 31, 2024 and 2023, were $299.2 million and
$315.8 million, respectively, including unearned premiums of $171.6 million and $184.1
million, respectively, and are included in premiums and installments booked but deferred and
not yet due.

Certain policyholders are required to remit deposits based on their credit worthiness. Deposits
are generally in the form of cash and are recorded as policyholders’ premium deposits and
included on the statements of admitted assets, liabilities, and capital and surplus in amounts
withheld or retained for account of others. However, policyholders may pledge surety bonds
and securities, as well as letters of credit, in lieu of cash deposits. Premium deposits at
December 31, 2024 and 2023, were $16.4 million and $17.3 million, respectively.

In addition to its regular premium plans, SAIF offers employers retrospective premium rating
plans under which premiums are adjusted annually for up to 102 years following the plan year
based on policyholders’ loss experience. Adjustments to the original premiums are paid to or
collected from the policyholders six months following the expiration of the policy and annually
thereafter for up to 10%2 years. The amounts of expected ultimate settlements are included in
the accompanying statements of admitted assets, liabilities, and capital and surplus as accrued
retrospective premiums receivable and payable. Changes in estimated settlements are
recorded in premiums earned at the time they are known.

SAIF estimates accrued retrospective premiums receivable and payable by reviewing historical
loss and premium development patterns at various stages of maturity and using these
historical patterns to arrive at the best estimate of return and additional retrospective
premiums on all open retrospectively rated policies. Premiums written on retrospective
workers’ compensation policies for 2024 and 2023 were $79.0 million and $102.3 million,
respectively, or 13.3 and 16.8 percent of net premiums written, respectively.

SAIF has nonadmitted 10 percent of the amount of accrued retrospective premiums receivable
not offset by accrued retrospective premiums payable to the same party (other than the
reserve for losses and loss adjustment expenses), or collateral. At December 31, 2024 and
2023, the admitted balance was as follows (dollars in thousands):

2024 2023
Total accrued retrospective premiums receivable $47,162 $26,461
Less nonadmitted amount (10 percent) 4,716 2,646
Admitted accrued retrospective premiums receivable $42,446 $23,815

Reserve for losses and loss adjustment expenses— Reserves for losses and loss
adjustment expenses (LAE) are informed by historical experience and assumptions regarding
future development. The reserves include provisions for claims reported and claims incurred
but not reported (IBNR).

Reserves for loss and LAE are estimates to cover future costs associated with settling all claims

obligations. Reserve estimates are based on a number of factors, including, but not limited to,
the duration of worker disability, claimant and beneficiary lifespans, medical cost trends,
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occupational disease exposure, inflation, and other societal, legislative, judicial, and economic
factors. Adjustments resulting from changes in reserve estimates will be reflected in the period
in which the adjustments occur (see Note 7).

Management believes the reserves established for unpaid losses and LAE as of December 31,
2024 and 2023, are reasonable estimates of future claim costs and expenses associated with
administering claims. Executive leadership reviews the key assumptions underlying the
Actuarial Services Division’s reserve analysis annually to ensure they appropriately consider
the significant uncertainty associated with the unpaid liability.

Premium deficiency—Premium deficiency is based upon an estimate of the amount by which
the sum of anticipated claims costs, claims adjustment expenses, and maintenance expenses
exceeds expected premium income and earnings on investments. At December 31, 2024 and
2023, no reserve for premium deficiency was required to be recorded.

Policyholders’ dividends—Substantially all of SAIF’s business is written under various
participating plans wherein a dividend may be returned to the policyholder. Dividends may be
paid to the extent that a surplus is accumulated from premiums, investment gains, and/or loss
reserve reductions. In 2024 and 2023, policyholder dividends of $59.9 million and $135.0
million, respectively, were incurred and paid to qualifying policyholders.

Taxes and assessments—The Oregon Department of Justice has determined that SAIF is
exempt from federal and state income taxes, because it is an integral part of the State of
Oregon and, alternatively, exempt under either or both Sections 501(c)(27)(B) and 115(1) of
the Internal Revenue Code.

SAIF collects and remits levies on behalf of their policyholders to the Oregon Workers’
Compensation Division of DCBS. Such assessments constitute an in-lieu-of-tax relative to
premiums. Premium assessment expenses were $53.1 million and $56.6 million for the years
ended December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively. Premium assessments were accrued in the
amount of $44.8 million and $45.4 million as of December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively.
Premium assessment income for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 was $53.1
million and $56.6 million, respectively, and is included as a reduction to other underwriting
expenses incurred.

Use of estimates—The preparation of financial statements in accordance with SAP requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
admitted assets and liabilities, the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period, and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Allocable expenses—The material components of loss adjustment expenses, other
underwriting expenses, and investment expenses were as follows (dollars in thousands):

2024 2023
Loss Other Loss Other
Adjustment Underwriting Adjustment Underwriting
Expenses Expenses Investment Expenses Expenses Investment
Incurred Incurred Expenses Incurred Incurred Expenses
Salaries, wages, & other benef $117,664 $ 102,653 $ 4,102 $ 98,366 $ 88,362 $ 3,295
Commissions - 43,471 - - 45,048 -
Other 42,083 31,582 9,736 27,419 33,417 9,353
Total allocable expenses $159,747 $ 177,706 $ 13,838 $125,785 $ 166,827 $ 12,648
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Subsequent events—Subsequent events have been considered through July 29, 2025, which
is the date the financial statements were available to be issued.

NEW STATUTORY ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES

No applicable new Statutory Accounting Principles were adopted by SAIF for the years ended
December 31, 2024 and 2023.

INVESTMENTS

SAIF’s investment policies are governed by statute and the Oregon Investment Council
(Council). The State Treasurer (Treasurer) is the investment officer for the Council and is
responsible for the funds on deposit in the State Treasury. In accordance with ORS 293.726,
the investment funds are required to be invested, and the investments of those funds
managed, as a prudent investor would do, exercising reasonable care, skill, and caution. While
the Treasurer is authorized to use demand deposit accounts and fixed income investments,
equity investment transactions must be directed by external investment managers that are
under contract with the Council. Equity investments are limited to not more than 50 percent of
the monies contributed to the Industrial Accident Fund (SAIF Corporation). However, SAIF's
adopted investment policy as approved by the Council limits equity holdings to a range of 7
percent to 13 percent of the market value of invested assets with a target allocation of 10
percent.

Effective October 23, 2024, the Council approved a revised asset allocation policy for SAIF
Corporation. The allocation reaffirms a 5 percent target allocation to real estate in the form of
private or publicly traded funds, allows for a 5 percent allocation to private credit through
senior secured direct lending, and increased the target allocation to fixed income holdings from
77 percent to 80 percent. The target allocation to global equities is unchanged at 10 percent.

Bond, mortgage-backed, asset-backed, and equity security transactions are recorded on a
trade-date basis, generally three business days prior to the settlement date. However, the
number of days between trade and settlement dates for mortgage-backed securities can be up
to 30 days or longer, depending on the security. Receivables for securities not received within
15 days from the settlement date are nonadmitted. There were no such receivables at
December 31, 2024 and 2023.
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The carrying value and fair value of SAIF’s investment securities at December 31, 2024 and

2023, were as follows (dollars in thousands):

Excess Of
Fair Value
Carrying Fair Over (Under)
2024 Value Value Carrying Value
Bonds:
U.S. Government $ 344,323 295,455 $ (48,868)
All other governments 15,678 11,927 (3,751)
U.S. political subdivisions of states, territories,
and possessions 6,028 6,028 -
U.S. special revenue and special assessment 55,533 54,063 (1,470)
Hybrid securities 36,747 37,594 847
Industrial and miscellaneous 2,197,553 2,062,686 (134,867)
Mortgage and other asset-backed securities 1,114,418 1,043,187 (71,231)
Total bonds $ 3,770,280 3,510,940 $ (259,340)
Short-term investments $ 2,372 2,372 $ -
Real estate investments
Prime Property Fund LLC $ 134,794 134,794 $ -
RREEF America II LP 114,881 114,881 -
Total real estate investments $ 249,675 249,675 $ -
Other invested assets - Surplus Notes $ 16,307 18,354 $ 2,047
Common stocks - BlackRock MSCI ACWI IMI Index Fund $ 524,180 524,180 $ -
Excess Of
Fair Value
Carrying Fair Over (Under)
2023 Value Value Carrying Value
Bonds:
U.S. Government $ 357,676 325,150 $ (32,526)
All other governments 15,896 13,351 (2,545)
U.S. political subdivisions of states, territories,
and possessions 6,159 6,159 -
U.S. special revenue and special assessment 63,881 63,752 (129)
Hybrid securities 34,465 33,842 (623)
Industrial and miscellaneous 2,186,179 2,078,320 (107,859)
Mortgage and other asset-backed securities 1,029,368 957,802 (71,566)
Total bonds $ 3,693,624 3,478,376 $ (215,248)
Short-term investments $ 2,210 2,211 1
Real estate investments
Prime Property Fund LLC $ 141,353 141,353 $ -
RREEF America II LP 117,479 117,479 -
Total real estate investments $ 258,832 258,832 $ -
Other invested assets - Surplus Notes $ 16,310 18,809 $ 2,499
Common stocks - BlackRock MSCI ACWI IMI Index Fund $ 521,906 521,906 $ -
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Proceeds from the sale of bonds were $0.9 billion and $0.8 billion during 2024 and 2023,

respectively. Proceeds from the sale of stocks were $80.2 million and $0.4 million during 2024

and 2023, respectively.

The carrying value and fair value of bonds at December 31, 2024 and 2023, by contractual
maturity, except for asset-backed securities which are by expected maturity, are shown as
follows (dollars in thousands). Expected maturities will differ from contractual maturities
because borrowers may have the right to call or prepay obligations with or without call or

prepayment penalties.

2024 2023

Carrying Fair Carrying Fair

Value Value Value Value
Due in one year or less $ 58,916 $ 58,896 $ 26,943 $ 26,701
Due after one year through five years 698,673 684,320 803,259 785,769
Due after five years through ten years 939,785 909,503 848,621 814,658
Due after ten years 2,072,906 1,858,221 2,014,801 1,851,248
Total bonds $ 3,770,280 $ 3,510,940 $ 3,693,624 $ 3,478,376

Net investment income earned for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023, was

comprised of the following (dollars in thousands):

Bonds

Common stock

Real estate investments
Other invested assets

Total gross investment income earned

Less investment expenses

Net investment income earned

2024 2023
$ 162,949 $ 153,285
151 69

10,148 9,917

9,273 8,654

182,521 171,925

13,837 12,648

$ 168,684 $ 159,277

Gross realized gains and losses and the net realized gains (losses) for the years ended
December 31, 2024 and 2023, were as follows (dollars in thousands):

Gross Gross Net Realized
Realized Realized Gains

2024 Gains Losses (Losses)

Bonds $ 7,319 $ (30,986) $ (23,667)
Common stock 57,854 - 57,854
Other invested assets 1 (6) (5)
Short-term investments 3 - 3
Total $ 65,177 $ (30,992) % 34,185
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Gross Gross Net Realized
Realized Realized Gains

2023 Gains Losses (Losses)

Bonds $ 1,398 $ (41,482) ¢ (40,084)
Common stock 172 - 172
Other invested assets 38 - 38
Short-term investments - (4) (4)
Total $ 1,608 $ (41,486) $ (39,878)

The following tables represent unrealized losses on bonds at December 31, 2024 and 2023,
that were in a loss position for less than one year and a continuous loss position for greater
than one year. These bonds were not considered OTTI, as SAIF’s investment managers assert
that they have the intent and ability to hold these securities long enough to allow the cost
basis of these securities to be recovered. Unrealized losses arise from mark to market changes
in a bond’s price. These are primarily, but not only, attributable to interest rate risk, credit
risk, prepayment risk, inflation risk, call risk, and/or liquidity discounts (dollars in thousands):

Amortized Unrealized Fair

2024 Unrealized Losses Cost Losses Value
Less than one year

U.S. Government $ 148,615 $ 6,760 $ 141,855

All other governments - - -

U.S. political subdivisions of states, territories,

and possessions 6,247 219 6,028

U.S. special revenue and special assessment - - -

Hybrid securities 239 1 238

Industrial and miscellaneous 438,369 11,101 427,268

Mortgage and other asset-backed securities 246,653 3,734 242,919
Total less than one year 840,123 21,815 818,308
Greater than one year

U.S. Government 167,151 42,420 124,731

All other governments 16,527 4,600 11,927

U.S. political subdivisions of states, territories,

and possessions - - -

U.S. special revenue and special assessment 13,935 3,014 10,921

Hybrid securities 16,639 828 15,811

Industrial and miscellaneous 1,119,832 154,731 965,101

Mortgage and other asset-backed securities 576,997 75,595 501,402
Total greater than one year 1,911,081 281,188 1,629,893
Total unrealized losses $ 2,751,204 $ 303,003 $ 2,448,201
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Amortized Unrealized Fair

2023 Unrealized losses Cost Losses Value
Less than one year
U.S. Government $ 58,253 $ 1,020 $ 57,233

All other governments - - -
U.S. political subdivisions of states, territories,

and possessions - - -
U.S. special revenue and special assessment - - -
Hybrid securities 2,750 610 2,140

Industrial and miscellaneous 106,439 2,790 103,649
Mortgage and other asset-backed securities 81,259 901 80,358
Total less than one year 248,701 5,321 243,380
Greater than one year
U.S. Government 182,051 37,072 144,979
All other governments 16,523 3,172 13,351
U.S. political subdivisions of states, territories,
and possessions 6,237 78 6,159
U.S. special revenue and special assessment 23,161 2,821 20,340
Hybrid securities 14,666 1,178 13,488
Industrial and miscellaneous 1,476,952 153,334 1,323,618
Mortgage and other asset-backed securities 763,374 80,187 683,187
Total greater than one year 2,482,964 277,842 2,205,122
Total unrealized losses $ 2,731,665 $ 283,163 $ 2,448,502

As of December 31, 2024 and 2023, there were no unrealized losses on equity securities that
were in a loss position for less than one year and a continuous loss position for greater than
one year.

SAIF seeks guidance from the external investment managers on a regular basis to determine if
any OTTI exists. OTTI is recorded as realized investment losses on the Statement of Revenues,
Expenses, and Capital and Surplus. The loan-backed and structured securities in the table
above were not considered OTTI as of December 31, 2024. The Company’s investment
managers assert that they have the intent and ability to hold these securities long enough to
allow the cost basis of these securities to be recovered. Unrealized losses arise from mark to
market changes in a bond’s price. These are primarily (but not only) attributable to interest
rate risk, credit risk, prepayment risk, inflation risk, call risk, and/or liquidity discounts. It is
possible that the Company could recognize OTTI in the future on some of the securities held at
December 31, 2024, if future events, information, and the passage of time causes it to
conclude that declines in value are other-than-temporary. As of December 31, 2024, there was
$161 thousand in investment losses due to OTTI. There was no OTTI recorded for the year
ended December 31, 2023.

SAIF invests in several asset classes that could potentially be adversely affected by subprime
mortgage exposure. These investments include mortgage-backed securities, debt obligations of
financial institutions participating in subprime lending practices, and unaffiliated equity
securities issued by financial institutions participating in subprime lending. SAIF believes that its
greatest exposure is to unrealized losses from declines in asset values versus realized losses
resulting from defaults or foreclosures. SAIF has reviewed its mortgage-backed security
portfolio and determined that all of these investments are in pools that are backed by loans
made to well-qualified borrowers or tranches that have minimal default risk, with the exception
of four securities, Countrywide Asset Backed, JP Morgan Mortgage Acquisition, Long Beach
Mortgage Loan Trust, and New Residential Mortgage Loan included below. Default risk on the
bonds appears minimal at this time. The impact on these investments, should the market
conditions worsen, cannot be assessed at this time. The following table summarizes the SAIF’s
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investments with subprime exposure. The mortgage-backed securities portfolio at
December 31, 2024 and 2023, were (dollars in thousands):

Other-Than-
Book/Adjusted Temporary
Carrying Value Impairment
(Excluding Losses
Description Actual Cost Interest) Fair Value Recognized
2024 Residential mortgage-backed securities $ 5,309 $ 5,370 $ 4,950 $
2023 Residential mortgage-backed securities $ 8,078 $ 8,168 $ 7,505 $

Wash sales—In the course of SAIF’s asset management, securities are sold and reacquired
within 30 days of the sale date to enhance SAIF’s yield on its investment portfolio.

No securities with NAIC designations of 3 or below were sold during the years ended
December 31, 2024 and 2023 and reacquired within 30 days of the sale.

Securities on deposit—U.S. Treasury obligations with a carrying value of $8.4 million and
$8.2 million were on deposit with the Federal Reserve as required by the U.S. Department of
Labor under the Longshore and Harbor Workers’ Compensation Act as of December 31, 2024
and 2023. respectively. Certificates of deposit with a carrying value of $350 thousand were on
deposit at U.S. Bank as required by DCBS as of December 31, 2024 and 2023. U.S. Treasury
obligations with a carrying value of $54.6 million and $52.5 million were on deposit with
Wilmington Trust for loss payments with Zurich, a reinsurer for other states coverage, as of
December 31, 2024 and 2023.

SECURITIES LENDING

In accordance with state investment policies, SAIF participates in securities lending
transactions. The Oregon State Treasury has, through a Securities Lending Agreement,
authorized State Street to lend SAIF’s securities to broker-dealers and banks pursuant to a
form of loan agreement. Both SAIF and the borrowers maintain the right to terminate all
securities lending transactions on demand. There have been no significant violations of the
provisions of securities lending agreements.

During 2024 and 2023, State Street loaned SAIF’s fixed income securities and received cash
and noncash collateral denominated in U.S. dollars. Borrowers were required to deliver
collateral for each loan equal to at least 102 percent of the fair value of the loaned security.
SAIF did not impose any restrictions on the amount of the loans State Street made on its
behalf. Securities received as collateral may not be sold or pledged by SAIF, except in the
event of borrower default. SAIF was fully indemnified by State Street against losses due to
borrower default, and there were no losses during the year from the failure of borrowers to
return loaned securities.

State Street is authorized by the Securities Lending Agreement to invest cash collateral
received for securities loaned in the State Street Bank and Trust Company Oregon Short-Term
Investment Fund (the Fund). SAIF’s participation in this fund is voluntary. The fair value of
investments held by this fund is based upon valuations provided by a recognized pricing
service. This fund is not registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission, but the
custodial agent is subject to the oversight of the Federal Reserve Board and the Massachusetts
Commissioner of Banks. No income from the Fund was assigned to another fund by the
custodial agent during 2024 and 2023. At December 31, 2024 and 2023, the Fund had an
average life-final maturity of 64 days and 88 days, respectively.
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The cash collateral held at December 31, 2024 and 2023, was $135.6 million and $65.4
million, respectively. As of December 31, 2024, SAIF held $16.1 million in securities received
as collateral. There were no securities received as collateral as of December 31, 2023. At
December 31, 2024 and 2023, the fair value, including accrued investment income related to
the securities on loan, was $146.2 million and $64.0 million, respectively. For 2024 and 2023,
securities lending income was $6.2 million and $3.0 million and securities lending expense was
$5.8 million and $2.6 million, respectively. These amounts are reported net in the
accompanying financial statements as a component of net investment income earned.

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

In accordance with the NAIC disclosure requirements of SSAP No. 100, Fair Value
Measurements, SAIF has categorized its assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value
into the three-level fair value hierarchy as reflected in the table that follows. The three-level
fair value hierarchy is based on the degree of subjectivity inherent in the valuation method by
which fair value was determined. The three levels are defined as follows:

Level 1 - Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets and liabilities: This category, for
items measured at fair value on a recurring basis, includes hybrid securities and exchange-
traded common stocks. The estimated fair value of the equity securities within this category
are based on quoted prices in active markets and are thus classified as Level 1.

Level 2 - Significant other observable inputs: This category, for items measured at fair value
on a recurring basis, includes bonds and common stocks which are not exchange-traded. The
estimated fair values of some of these items were determined by independent pricing services
using observable inputs. Others were based on quotes from markets which were not
considered actively traded.

Level 3 - Significant unobservable inputs: This category, for items measured at fair value
where there is no independent pricing source available, includes bonds, common stocks, and
other invested assets. The estimated fair values of these items were determined by SAIF's
investment managers’ own assumptions using unobservable inputs.

At the end of 2024, the Company had invested $120.0 million in DWS RREEF America II LP
fund. The final capital commitment of $2.5 million was contributed in January 2024. A total of
$120.0 million was invested in Morgan Stanley Prime Property Fund, LLC, which was funded
completely in 2020. As of December 31, 2024, the Company had no unfunded commitments.
Both funds are open-ended real estate funds that permit quarterly redemption of shares,
subject to certain requirements being met. The funds are valued using net asset value (NAV).
The funds are expected to be held for the long term and generate a cash flow that will
represent a significant component of the total return.

The following assets and liabilities measured and reported at fair value in the Level 1, 2, or 3
category at December 31, 2024 and 2023, were (dollars in thousands):
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2024

Description For Each Class of Asset Net Asset
or Liability Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Value (NAV) Total
Assets at fair value
Bonds-industrial and miscellaneous $ - $ 67,714 $ - $ - $ 67,714
Common stocks-mutual funds - 524,180 - - 524,180
Cash equivalents-money market fund - 13,081 - - 13,081
Real estate investments - - - 249,675 249,675
Total assets at fair value $ - $ 604,975 $ - $ 249,675 $ 854,650
Liabilities at fair value $ - _3 - S - _$ - 3 -
Total liabilities at fair value $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
2023
Description For Each Class of Asset Net Asset
or Liability Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Value (NAV) Total
Assets at fair value
Bonds-industrial and miscellaneous $ - $ 66,360 $ - $ - $ 66,360
Common stocks-mutual funds - 521,906 - - 521,906
Cash equivalents-money market fund - 4,102 - - 4,102
Real estate investments - - - 258,832 258,832
Total assets at fair value $ - $ 592,368 $ - $ 258,832 $ 851,200
Liabilities at fair value $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
Total liabilities at fair value $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -

At the end of each reporting period, SAIF evaluates whether or not any event has occurred, or
circumstances have changed, that would cause an instrument to be transferred into and out of
Level 3. At December 31, 2024 and 2023, there were no assets or liabilities transferred into
and out of Level 3.

Bonds carried at fair value categorized as Level 2 were valued using a market approach. These
valuations were determined to be Level 2 valuations as quoted market prices for similar
instruments in an active market were utilized. This was accomplished by the use of matrix
pricing. Matrix pricing takes quoted prices of bonds with similar features and applies analytic
methods to determine the fair value of bonds held. Features that are inputs into the analysis
include duration, credit quality, tax status, and call and sinking fund features.

Common stocks carried at fair value categorized as Level 2 were valued using a market
approach. These valuations were determined to be Level 2 valuations because quoted market
prices for identical instruments trading in an inactive market were utilized. When an equity
instrument is illiquid due to limited trading activity, the use of quoted market prices for
identical instruments was determined by SAIF to be the most reliable method to determine fair
value. There were no assets measured at fair value in the Level 3 category at December 31,
2024 and 2023.

The following tables reflect the fair values and admitted values of all admitted assets and
liabilities that are financial instruments at December 31, 2024 and 2023, excluding those
accounted for under the equity method (subsidiaries, joint ventures, partnerships, and limited
liability corporations). The fair values are also categorized into the three-level fair value
hierarchy as described above (dollars in thousands):
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Not

2024 Net Asset Practicable

Aggregate Admitted Value (Carrying
Type of Financial Instrument Fair Value Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 (NAV) Value)

Assets

Bonds $ 3,510,815 $ 3,770,280 $ 2,248 $ 3,508,567 $ - $ 125

Common stocks 524,180 524,180 - 524,180 - -

Real estate investments 249,675 249,675 249,675

Other invested assets 18,354 16,307 - 18,354 - -

Securities lending reinvested

collateral 135,641 135,641 - 135,641 - -

Cash, cash equivalents, & short-

term 54,928 55,152 39,474 15,454 - 225

Total assets $ 4,493,593 $ 4,751,235 $ 41,722 $ 4,202,196 $ 249,675 $ 350

Liabilities

Total liabilities $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -

Not

2023 Net Asset Practicable

Aggregate Admitted Value (Carrying
Type of Financial Instrument Fair Value Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 (NAV) Value)

Assets

Bonds $ 3,478,026 $ 3,693,624 $ 2,141 $ 3,475,885 $ - $ 350

Common stocks 521,906 521,906 - 521,906 - -

Real estate investments 258,832 258,832 258,832

Other invested assets 18,809 16,310 - 18,809 - -

Securities lending reinvested

collateral 65,366 65,366 - 65,366 - -

Cash, cash equivalents, & short-

term 56,956 56,954 35,690 21,266 - -

Total assets $ 4,399,895 $ 4,612,992 $ 37,831 $ 4,103,232 $ 258,832 $ 350

Liabilities

Total liabilities $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
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It was not practicable to determine the fair values of the bonds in the following table at
December 31, 2024 and 2023, for purposes of the above disclosures, as these items are not
traded, and therefore, quoted market prices are not available. Also, the cost of obtaining
estimates of fair values from other sources was considered excessive given the immateriality

of the bonds (dollars in thousands):

2024
Type or Class of Carrying Effective Maturity
Financial Instrument Value Interest Rate Date
Bonds
U.S. Bank certificate of deposit $ 225 2.25% 4/1/2025
U.S. Bank certificate of deposit 125 0.25% 10/7/2025
Total $ 350
2023
Type or Class of Carrying Effective Maturity
Financial Instrument Value Interest Rate Date
Bonds
U.S. Bank certificate of deposit $ 225 2.05% 4/1/2024
U.S. Bank certificate of deposit 125 0.25% 10/7/2025
Total $ 350

LOSSES AND LOSS ADJUSTMENT EXPENSES

SAIF has established a reserve for both reported and unreported insured events, which
includes estimates of future payments of losses and related LAE. In estimating the reserve for
losses and LAE, SAIF considers prior experience, industry information, currently recognized
trends affecting data specific to SAIF, and other factors relating to workers’ compensation
insurance underwritten by SAIF. Beginning with the 2023 financial statement, SAIF will use the
Appointed Actuary’s models and analysis to inform SAIF’s recorded liabilities for unpaid claims.
When necessary, SAIF adjusted the Appointed Actuary’s model assumptions to reflect SAIF’s

reserving philosophy.
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The following table provides a reconciliation of the beginning and ending reserve for losses and
LAE at December 31, 2024 and 2023 (dollars in thousands):

2024 2023
Gross reserve for losses and loss adjustment expenses—beginning
of year $ 2,592,273 $ 2,538,934
Less reinsurance ceded—beginning of year (72,108) (67,665)

Net balance—beginning of year

Incurred related to:

2,520,165

2,471,269

Current year 651,204 640,563

Prior year (16,988) (101,688)
Total incurred losses and loss adjustment expenses 634,216 538,875
Paid related to:

Current year 202,901 193,980

Prior year 315,453 295,999

Total paid losses and loss adjustment expenses

518,354

489,979

Net balance—end of year 2,636,027 2,520,165
Plus reinsurance ceded—end of year 68,155 72,108
Gross reserve for losses and loss adjustment expenses—end of year $ 2,704,182 $ 2,592,273

The net reserve for losses and LAE increased $115.9 million (4.6 percent) compared to the
prior year. This was driven by establishing reserves for the 2024 accident year, offset by
payments made on previously incurred claims, and favorable development in prior accident
years. Loss reserves increased $76.8 million due to current accident year incurred claims of
$522.8 million less total paid claims of $397.6 million and favorable prior accident year reserve
reduction of $48.4 million. In past years, favorable development was strongly driven by
medical claims. However, in 2024 favorable medical claim development slowed due to
increasing average medical payment per claim. Subsequently, there was less total favorable
reserve development.

¢ Projected ultimate claims costs reduced primarily due to fewer than expected frequency on
disabling and non-disabling claims.

¢ Rising costs of medical services is driving medical escalation adding pressure to claims costs.
These impacts are partially offset by decreased utilization.

LAE reserves increased $39.1 million (10.0 percent). This was driven by newly established
reserves for the 2024 accident year, partially offset by paid LAE associated with previously
incurred claims and unfavorable development in prior accident years. The unfavorable
development in unpaid LAE for prior accident years was largely attributable to rising operating
expenses.

For 2023, the net reserve for losses and LAE increased $48.9 million (2.0 percent) compared
to the prior year. This was driven by establishing reserves for the 2023 accident year, offset by
payments made on previously incurred claims, and favorable development in prior accident
years. Loss reserves increased $36.1 million due to current accident year incurred claims of
$507.5 million less total paid claims of $377.0 million and favorable prior accident year reserve
reduction of $94.4 million. In past years, favorable development was strongly driven by medical
claims. However, in 2023 favorable medical claim development slowed due to increasing average
medical payment per claim. Subsequently, there was less total favorable reserve development,
and the favorable development is evenly spread across all portfolio segments.
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LAE reserves increased $12.8 million (3.4 percent) in 2023. This was driven by newly
established reserves for the 2023 accident year, partially offset by paid LAE associated with
previously incurred claims and favorable development in prior accident years. The favorable
development in unpaid LAE for prior accident years was largely attributable to the decrease in
loss reserves.

SAIF discounts the indemnity case reserves for workers’ compensation claims on a tabular
basis using the 2007 United States Life Tables, the 1997 United States of America Railroad
Retirement Board Remarriage Table, and a discount rate of 3.5 percent. SAIF does not
discount any incurred but not reported reserves, medical reserves, or any LAE reserves, except
for assumed incurred but not reported reserves reported by the National Workers
Compensation Reinsurance Pool. Net reserves subject to tabular discounting were $209.6
million and $209.2 million at December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively. The discounts were
$109.1 million and $106.0 million at December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively.

Anticipated salvage and subrogation of $59.8 million and $54.7 million was included as a
reduction of the reserve for losses and LAE at December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively.

SAIF’s exposure to asbestos claims arose from the sale of workers’ compensation policies.
Reserves of $13.9 million and $12.6 million for losses and LAE are related to asbestos claims
at December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively. Amounts paid for asbestos-related claims were
$409 thousand and $841 thousand for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023,
respectively.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The State of Oregon administers property and casualty insurance programs covering state
government agencies through its Insurance Fund, an internal service fund. The Insurance
Fund, established by ORS 278.425, is used to provide both self-insurance and commercial
insurance coverage for State of Oregon entities. The Insurance Fund services claims for: direct
physical loss or damage to state property; tort liability claims brought against the state, its
officers, employees, or agents; and employees, elected officials, and members of commissions
and boards for faithful performance. The Insurance Fund is backed by a commercial excess
property policy with limits of $425 million and a blanket commercial excess bond with limits of
$4.6 million.

SAIF participates in the Insurance Fund. The cost of servicing insurance claims and payments
is covered by charging an assessment to each participating state entity based on its share of
services provided in a prior period. The total statewide assessment of each type of coverage is
based on independent biennial actuarial forecasts and administrative expenses, less any
available fund balance of the Insurance Fund from the prior biennium. In addition, SAIF can
elect to purchase additional coverage, including cyber insurance, through the fund. SAIF’s
assessment was $0.4 million for both of the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023.

SAIF is self-insured for workers’ compensation insurance. SAIF’'s employees do not participate
in the State of Oregon’s health insurance plans. SAIF is also self-funded for one health and one
dental insurance option offered to its employees.

DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN

SAIF provides a deferred compensation plan, authorized under and consistent with Internal
Revenue Code Section 457(b), as a benefit available to eligible employees. As a tax-
advantaged retirement savings vehicle, the plan authorizes the employee to execute an
individual agreement with the plan’s record keeper, Empower Retirement. Participants cannot
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10.

receive the funds until certain circumstances are met. Funds withheld from employee
compensation and remitted to the plan may be invested by the employee in a variety of
mutual funds, collective investment trusts, and other offerings selected by SAIF's Deferred
Compensation Plan Committee. Plan assets are generally held in a trust account with Great-
West Trust Company, LLC and administered by Empower Retirement for the exclusive benefit
of the participants and their beneficiary(ies). Participants’ rights under the plan are equal to
the fair market value (or book value in the case of stable value option) of their deferred
compensation plan account. SAIF has no rights to participant funds and does not perform the
investing function for the participant, except in the instance where a participant fails to make
an affirmative investment election. SAIF’s primary fiduciary responsibilities for the plan
extends to selection and monitoring of the investment options that are made available to the
participants as well as the monitoring of plan service providers. Thus, plan assets and any
related liability to plan participants have been excluded from the financial statements.

RETIREMENT PLAN

SAIF’s employees hired prior to August 29, 2003, participate in the Oregon Public Employees’
Retirement System (PERS), a cost-sharing multiemployer defined benefit pension plan. The
PERS Board of Trustees under the guidelines of ORS Chapter 238 administers PERS. The PERS
retirement allowance, payable monthly for life, may be selected from multiple retirement
benefit options. Options include survivorship benefits, non-survivorship benefits, and lump-
sum benefits. The basic benefit formula is 1.67 percent of a member’s final average salary
multiplied by the member’s humber of years of service. Benefits may also be calculated under
either a money match or an annuity-plus-pension computation if a greater benefit results.
PERS also provides death and disability benefits. Employees’ Retirement System annual
financial report may be obtained by writing to PERS, Fiscal Services Division, PO Box 23700,
Tigard, Oregon 97281-3700. The report may also be accessed online at:
http://www.oregon.gov/PERS/pages/financials/actuarial-financial-information.aspx.

On December 30, 2019, SAIF funded a PERS side account totaling $97.0 million which
represented approximately 90 percent of SAIF's unfunded actuarial liability based on a
preliminary actuarial valuation from PERS. This side account does not impact employee
benefits received under PERS; instead, it represents a prepayment of SAIF's on-going
contributions. SAIF will see the benefit of lower contribution rates over 16 years as the account
is amortized at approximately $6.06 million per year. As of December 31, 2024, SAIF received
rate relief of 10.27 percent of each covered employee’s salary for its otherwise required
pension contribution rates. The balance is included in aggregate write-ins for other-than-
invested assets. This appears as a nhonadmitted asset and a reduction of surplus because it
represents a prepayment and the assets are held in the PERS trust, so they cannot be
repurposed.

Beginning January 1, 2004, all covered employees are required by state statute to contribute
6.00 percent of their salary to the Individual Account Program (IAP), a defined contribution
plan. Current law permits employers to pay employees’ contributions to PERS, which SAIF has
elected to do. Additionally, SAIF is required by statute to contribute a percentage of each
covered employee’s salary to fund the PERS program. Beginning on July 1, 2020, certain
amounts of the IAP contributions are “redirected” under Oregon statute from employee
accounts to fund the pension UAL. This provision remains in effect until the pension reaches a
certain funded status.

As of December 31, 2024, SAIF contributes 21.78 percent of each employee’s covered salary
to the PERS program. This contribution is the minimum contribution required for future
periods. For the required contributions, 10.27 percent of employees’ salaries is covered by the
side account rate relief, and SAIF contributes the remaining 11.51 percent of salary. Rates are
subject to change as a result of subsequent actuarial valuations.
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SAIF employees hired on or after August 29, 2003, participate in the Oregon Public Service
Retirement Plan (OPSRP) after completing six months of service. OPSRP is a hybrid pension
plan (cost-sharing multiple-employer plan) administered by the PERS Board of Trustees under
the guidelines of ORS Chapter 238A with two components: the Pension Program (defined
benefit) and the IAP (defined contribution). As of December 31, 2024, SAIF contributes 18.28
percent of each covered employee’s salary to the Pension Program and 6.00 percent to the
IAP. This contribution is the minimum contribution required for future periods. For the required
OPSRP Pension Program contributions, 10.27 percent of employee’s salaries is covered by the
side account rate relief, and SAIF contributes the remaining 8.01 percent of salary. Rates are
subject to change as a result of subsequent actuarial valuations.

SAIF participates, along with other State of Oregon agencies, in paying debt service for State
of Oregon general obligation bonds issued in October 2003 to reduce the unfunded PERS
liability. The bonds are scheduled to mature 25 years after the date of issuance. Currently, the
repayment rate is 4.80 percent of payroll each month. The payment rate is recalculated
periodically, as needed.

The total amount contributed by SAIF for all plans for the years ended December 31, 2024 and
2023, consist of the following (dollars in thousands):

2024 2023
Employer contributions:

Debt service $ 5,713 $ 5,914
PERS-Pension Program 5,930 6,054
OPSRP-Pension Program 16,986 14,428
Total employer contributions 28,629 26,396
PERS side account rate relief: (12,342) (10,904)
Net employer contributions 16,287 15,492

Employee contributions paid by SAIF:
PERS-IAP 1,566 1,615
OPSRP-IAP 5,574 4,870
Total employee contributions 7,140 6,485
Total contributions $ 23,427 $ 21,977

For the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023, SAIF’'s employer contributions were equal
to the annual required contributions. SAIF’s contributions were less than 5.00 percent of each
plan’s total contributions. There are no funding improvement or rehabilitation plans
implemented or pending for any of the plans SAIF participates in. SAIF did not pay any
surcharges during the year ended December 31, 2024. SAIF is a funder of last resort,
embodied in the scheme of ORS Chapter 238, along with every other employer in PERS. PERS’
board from time to time will evaluate the liabilities of PERS and set the amount of
contributions to be made by SAIF to ensure that those liabilities will be funded no more than
40 years after the date on which the determination is made.
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11. POST RETIREMENT BENEFITS AND COMPENSATED ABSENCES

Plan description — SAIF administers a single-employer defined benefit healthcare plan which is
accounted for in accordance with SSAP No. 92. SAIF employees retiring under Oregon PERS
are eligible to receive medical coverage for self and eligible dependents until age 65. Retirees
must pay the premium for the coverage elected. Premiums for coverage are identical for active
and retired employees, except to the extent that SAIF pays all or a portion of its active
employees’ premiums. Participating retirees pay their own monthly premiums based on a
blended premium rate since retirees are pooled together with active employees for insurance
rating purposes. Benefit provisions are established by SAIF.

Funding policy — SAIF’s funding policy provides for contributions at amounts sufficient to fund
benefits on a pay-as-you-go basis. The plan’s APBO was $8.9 million and $9.3 million as of
December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively, all of which was unfunded. It is recorded as other
accrued expenses on the Statement of Admitted Assets, Liabilities, and Capital and Surplus.

Actuarial methods and assumptions — Actuarial valuations involve estimates of the value of
reported amounts and assumptions about the probability of events far into the future.
Actuarially determined amounts are subject to continual revision as actual results are
compared to past expectations and new estimates are made about the future. Calculations are
based on the types of benefits provided under the terms of the substantive plan at the time of
each valuation and on the pattern of sharing of costs between the employer and participating
members to that point. Actuarial calculations reflect a long-term perspective and include
techniques that are designed to reduce short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and
the actuarial value of assets.

The postemployment healthcare benefit obligation was determined as part of the actuarial
valuation prepared by a consulting actuary as of December 31, 2024 and 2023, using the
projected unit credit cost method. Significant assumptions used in the actuarial valuation
include a 5.25 percent and 4.5 percent discount rate for the years ended December 31, 2024
and 2023, respectively. The health care cost trend rate used for 2024 was:

2024

Year Rate
2024 6.75%
2025 6.25%
2026 5.50%
2027 5.00%
2028-2029 4.75%
2030-2031 4.50%
2032-2066 4.25%
2067-2072 4.00%
2073+ 3.75%
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12,

The net periodic benefit cost recognized for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023,
was (dollars in thousands):

Postemployment &
Compensated Absence

Benefits
2024 2023
Service cost $ 450 $ 382
Interest cost 403 374
Recognition of net loss (gain) (583) 880
Total net periodic benefit cost $ 270 $ 1,636

Assumed health care cost trend rates have a significant effect on the amounts reported for the
health care plans. The following estimated future payments, which reflect expected future
service, as appropriate, are expected to be paid in the years indicated (dollars in thousands):

Year(s) Amount
2025 $ 670
2026 708
2027 805
2028 819
2029 817
2030 through 2034 4,026

SAIF has accrued obligations to former employees for benefits after their employment but
before their retirement. A liability for earned but untaken vacation pay, including taxes and
PERS benefits, for current employees has been accrued in the amount of $9.9 million and $9.3
million for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively.

CAPITAL AND SURPLUS
The cumulative increase (decrease) to capital and surplus reported in the financial statements

due to each item below at December 31, 2024 and 2023, was as follows (dollars in
thousands):

2024 2023
Net unrealized investment gains $ 369,781 $ 352,247
Nonadmitted assets $ (126,778) $ (137,751)

SAIF participates in a cost-sharing multiemployer defined benefit pension plan administered by
the Oregon Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) (see Note 10). PERS has a net
pension liability which represents the unfunded pension benefits. SAIF established a special
surplus fund in 2017 to identify its portion of the PERS liability and has adjusted the fund
based on an allocation provided by PERS as of June 30, 2024. The entire PERS system-wide
UAL increased by $3.5 billion during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2024 driven by lower than
expected asset returns and faster than expected payroll growth. Due to the timing delay, SAIF
has evaluated subsequent events that may impact the assets and liabilities of the plan and
determined that the valuation of liability is still materially accurate. Based on this information,
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13.

14.

15.

the special surplus fund for the unfunded pension benefits are $120.7 million and $72.7 million
at December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively.

CONTINGENCIES

SAIF has entered into structured settlements wherein SAIF has purchased annuities for which
the claimant is payee, but for which SAIF is contingently liable. The amount of the contingent
liability is the amount of the liability due to the various claimants that has been offset by the
purchase of the annuity. Contingent liabilities arising from these settlements are $1.5 million
and $1.6 million at December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively.

During the normal course of business, SAIF becomes involved in litigation arising out of
matters incident to the conduct of its insurance operations. SAIF is represented in these
actions by the Oregon Department of Justice. Some of these potential liabilities become actual
liabilities when one or more future events occur or fail to occur. To the extent that the future
event is likely to occur or fail to occur, and a reasonable estimate of the loss can be made, an
estimated liability would be recorded on SAIF's financial statements. Management believes that
these matters do not materially impact the financial statements.

SAIF had unfunded commitments of $2.5 million to be invested in DWS RREEF America II LP,
subject to capital calls by the fund, as of December 31, 2023. As of January 2, 2024, SAIF
invested the remaining $2.5 million in the fund (Note 6).

LEASE COMMITMENTS

SAIF leases office space in several locations under operating leases expiring during various
years through 2030. Lease expense was $1.5 million for the years ended December 31, 2024
and 2023.

SAIF’s future minimum lease payments under noncancelable operating leases at December 31,
2024, are as follows (dollars in thousands):

Year(s) Amount
2025 $ 1,368
2026 1,387
2027 1,426
2028 1,466
2029 1,080
2030 161
Total minimum payments $ 6,888

Certain rental commitments have renewal options extending through the year 2040.
REINSURANCE

In the ordinary course of business, SAIF cedes premiums for purposes of risk diversification
and limiting maximum loss exposure from catastrophic events through contractual agreements
with reinsurers. If such assuming reinsurers are unable to meet the obligations assumed under
these reinsurance agreements, SAIF would be liable to pay the obligation. To minimize its
exposure to significant losses from reinsurer insolvencies, SAIF evaluates the financial
condition of its reinsurers and monitors concentration of credit risk.
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SAIF maintains reinsurance protection which provides limits of $160.0 million of coverage per
occurrence in excess of a $35.0 million retentions, with a $15.0 million limit on any one life.
The Terrorism Risk Insurance Act provides coverage for certified domestic and foreign terrorist
events that are nuclear, biological, chemical, or radiological in nature, which are excluded from
the reinsurance contract. During 2024, SAIF had reinsurance protection for 80 percent of
losses in excess of 20 percent of 2023 direct earned premium for acts of foreign and domestic
terrorism through the Terrorism Risk Insurance Program Reauthorization Act.

The following amounts have been deducted in the accompanying financial statements as a
result of reinsurance ceded, excluding balances ceded to the Oregon Workers’ Compensation
Insurance Plan, for 2024 and 2023 (dollars in thousands):

2024 2023
Reserve for losses and loss adjustment expenses $ 18,003 $ 22,400
Premiums written and earned 2,203 2,170
Losses and loss adjustment expenses incurred (4,276) 8,769

SAIF does not have an unsecured aggregate reinsurance recoverable from any individual
reinsurer that exceeds 3 percent of policyholders’ surplus.

In 2024 and 2023, SAIF did not commute ceded reinsurance.

SAIF partners with Zurich and USIS to provide other states coverage. Zurich issues policies
covering the non-Oregon operation of SAIF’s customers and manages claims arising from
those policies. SAIF reinsures those policies in full. USIS, a broker licensed in all fifty states,
provides marketing and administrative services.

The following amounts are included in the accompanying financial statements as a result of
participation in other states coverage in 2024 and 2023 (dollars in thousands):

Other States Coverage 2024 2023

Assumed:
Reserve for losses and loss adjustment expenses $ 47,236 $ 43,657
Unearned premiums 9,712 9,564
Premiums written 25,170 24,305
Premiums earned 25,022 24,279
Losses and loss adjustment expenses incurred 17,923 17,331
Commission expense 3,933 4,464

SAIF is authorized to write business on behalf of the Oregon Workers’ Compensation Insurance
Plan (the Plan), administered by the National Council on Compensation Insurance through the
National Workers’ Compensation Reinsurance Pool (NWCRP). The Plan provides a guaranteed
source of workers’ compensation insurance for employers unable to obtain coverage because
of unstable financial condition, poor loss experience, or the inherently dangerous nature of the
work. SAIF cedes such business to the Plan. In addition, SAIF is required to assume its share
of premiums and losses from the Plan based on voluntary market share.

The following amounts are included in the accompanying financial statements as a result of
participation in the Plan in 2024 and 2023 (dollars in thousands):
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NWCRP 2024 2023

Assumed:
Reserve for losses and loss adjustment expenses $ 85,665 $ 90,633
Unearned premiums 3,653 4,149
Premiums written 13,484 14,367
Premiums earned 13,980 15,039
Losses and loss adjustment expenses incurred 1,982 3,497
Commission expense 4,059 4,287

Ceded:
Reserve for losses and loss adjustment expenses $ 50,152 $ 49,707
Unearned premiums 3,436 3,875
Premiums written 8,157 9,689
Premiums earned 8,596 10,415
Losses and loss adjustment expenses incurred 5,834 1,659
Commission expense 2,205 2,997

16. ELECTRONIC DATA PROCESSING (EDP) EQUIPMENT AND SOFTWARE

EDP equipment and operating and nonoperating software are carried at cost less accumulated
depreciation. Depreciation expense is computed using the straight-line method over the lesser
of the estimated useful life of the related asset or three years for EDP equipment and
operating system software. Depreciation expense for nonadmitted nonoperating system
software is computed using the straight-line method over the lesser of the estimated useful life
of the related asset or five years. There were no nonoperating software assets admitted at
December 31, 2024 and 2023.

Admitted EDP equipment and software at December 31, 2024 and 2023, were as follows
(dollars in thousands):

2024 2023
EDP equipment and software $ 92,602 $ 52,986
Nonadmitted EDP software in development (35,003) (5,281)
Accumulated depreciation (56,661) (46,340)
Balance, net $ 938 $ 1,365

Depreciation expense related to admitted EDP equipment and software was $10.7 million and
$8.5 million for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively.

17. RECONCILIATION OF ANNUAL STATEMENTS TO AUDITED STATUTORY-BASIS
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The following reconciles the differences between the annual statements as filed with the
Insurance Division and the audited financial statements for the years ended December 31,
2024 and 2023.

The following adjustments were made after the annual statements were filed. These
adjustments were primarily the result of differences between estimates of reinsurance
assumed from NWCRP recorded in the filed annual statements and actual amounts of
reinsurance assumed from NWCRP recorded in the audited financial statements as well as the
updated PERS UAL valuation (dollars in thousands):
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2024
(In thousands)

Statement of admitted assets, liabilities, and capital

and surplus:
Other assets

Total admitted assets

Losses

Unearned premiums

Other liabilities

Other accrued expenses
Total liabilities

Capital and surplus—PERS UAL

Capital and surplus—unassigned funds
Total capital and surplus

Total assets, liabilities and surplus

Statement of revenues, expenses, and capital

and surplus:

Premiums earned, net

Losses incurred, net

Other underwriting expenses incurred
Total underwriting expenses

Net underwriting (loss)
Net loss from premium balances charged off

Other income

Total other income (expense)—net

Net loss before dividends to policyholders

Net loss

Change in net unrealized capital losses
Total capital and surplus—end of year

Statement of cash flows:
Premiums collected net of reinsurance
Miscellaneous income (expense)
Benefits and loss related payments
Underwriting expenses paid

Net cash from operations

Other cash applied
Net cash from (used by) financing and
miscellaneous sources
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Filed Audited Difference
33,193 $ 33,598 $ 405
5,263,722 5,264,127 405
2,208,101 2,205,196 (2,905)
249,967 249,506 (461)
2,380 2,805 425
56,719 58,535 1,816
3,187,469 3,186,344 (1,125)
72,700 120,700 48,000
2,003,553 1,957,083 (46,470)
2,076,253 2,077,783 1,530
5,263,722 $ 5,264,127 405
603,927 $ 605,093 $ 1,166
473,103 474,469 1,366
177,364 177,706 342
810,214 811,922 1,708
(206,287) (206,829) (542)
(2,900) (2,579) 321
1,371 1,371 -
(1,529) (1,208) 321
(4,947) (5,168) (221)
(64,885) (65,106) (221)
(36,378) (36,600) (222)
2,076,253 $ 2,077,783 $ 1,530
593,240 $ 594,037 $ 797
(1,529) (1,208) 321
(397,616) (397,604) 12
(290,502) (289,476) 1,026
14,960 $ 17,116 $ 2,156
3,325 $ 1,169 $ (2,156)
3,325 $ 1,169 $ (2,156)




2023 Filed Audited Difference
(In thousands)
Statement of admitted assets, liabilities, and capital
and surplus:
Other assets $ 33,495 $ 33,126 (369)
Total admitted assets 5,127,851 5,127,482 (369)
Losses 2,132,676 2,128,393 (4,283)
Unearned premiums 258,618 258,526 (92)
Other liabilities 2,959 4,764 1,805
Other accrued expenses 59,529 59,977 448
Total liabilities 3,015,220 3,013,099 (2,121)
Capital and surplus—unassigned funds 2,039,931 2,041,683 1,752
Total capital and surplus 2,112,631 2,114,383 1,752
Total assets, liabilities and surplus $ 5,127,851 $ 5,127,482 (369)
Statement of revenues, expenses, and capital
and surplus:
Premiums earned, net $ 591,548 $ 590,847 (701)
Losses incurred, net 424,039 413,090 (10,949)
Other underwriting expenses incurred 167,029 166,827 (202)
Total underwriting expenses 716,853 705,702 (11,151)
Net underwriting gain (loss) (125,305) (114,855) 10,450
Net loss from premium balances charged off (1,605) (1,563) 42
Total other income (expense)—net (358) (314) 44
Net income (loss) before dividends to policyholders (6,264) 4,230 10,494
Net income (141,250) (130,756) 10,494
Net change in capital and surplus (76,280) (65,786) 10,494
Total capital and surplus—end of year $ 2,112,631 $ 2,114,383 1,752
Statement of cash flows:
Premiums collected net of reinsurance $ 577,519 $ 576,869 (650)
Miscellaneous income (expense) (358) (314) 44
Benefits and loss related payments (377,083) (377,004) 79
Underwriting expenses paid (262,771) (262,247) 524
Net cash from operations $ (30,711) $ (30,714) (3)
Other cash applied (14,122) % (14,119) 3
Net cash from (used by) financing and
miscellaneous sources $ (14,122) % (14,119) 3
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10 Aerefesbies for serurties
11 Becariies Lesdng (Edheuie DL, Past 1) TIEEAT A 3 13541402 EXE EEX EEX
12 Diher Inwesied assets [Fege 2, Lise 11)
131 Tol Ievesiegd sexpis o 102.08 44847 2 13RS 48T SF3444T 900 Ba0.

-37-




APPENDIX B
SUPPLEMENTAL INVESTMENT RISKS INTERROGATORIES

- 38 -



Supplement for the year 2024 of the  SAIF Corporation

36196202428500100

SUPPLEMENTAL INVESTMENT RISKS INTERROGATORIES

For The Year Ended Decemiber 31, 2024
T Be Filed ky April 1)

OiThe  SAIF Comporation Inswrance Company
Address [City, State, Zip Code) 400 High Sireet Southeast, Salem, OR 87312
NAIC Growp Code 0000 MAIC Compary Code 36196 Employer's |0 Numksr 9348001789

The Investment Risks Intermogatories are to be fled by April 1. They are also to be included with the Audited Statutory Financial Stabements.

Answer the following interogatories by reporting the applicable U. 5. dolar amounts and percentages of the reporting enftity's tofal admiftied assets held in that
category of imvesiments.

1. Reporiing entity's total admitted assets as reporied on Page 2 of this annual statement. § ST EE

2. Ten largest exposwes o 3 sngle issuerborrowerinvesiment.

1 2 3 4
Description of Percentage of Total
|suer Exposure Amaount Admithed Assets

201 BlackRock MSC| ACWI Index Fund Index. Fund H 524 150,004 9958 %

202 FNMA Sond H 330,273,760 6375 %

203 FHLMC Sond H 245 449 F41 2582 %

204 Margan Stankey SondReal Estatz Fund H 178,394 B37 3388 %
2.05 RREEF Ametica ll LP Real Estate Fund H 114,851,040 2183 %
205 Bank of America Com Sond H B0, 765,581 153 %

207 JF Morgan & Chase Ca Sond H 71,668 671 1362 %

208 Ciigrowe Inc Sond H 58,904,302 1118 %

2.09 Wells Farge & Co Sond H 44 830 529 0852 %

240 Comeast Coep Sond H 34,138,527 ] 0725 %

3. Amounts and percentages of the reporting entity’s fofal admitted assets held in bonds and prefizrred stocks by NAIC designation.
Bonds 1 2 Preferred Stocks 3 4
A NAICH 3 2415 155,225 45883 % 307 NAaCi % %
3 NAIC2 3 1,182 B14 533 22661 % 308 NAaICZ % %
303 NAICS 3 154 884 480 2867 % 308 NAICE % %
a4 NAICE 3 7 583,257 0448 % 340 NAIC4  § %
305  NAICS 3 5,104 17 0087 % 311 NAICS  § %
306 NAICE 3 % 342 NAICE % %
£ Assets held in foreign invesiments:
401 Are assets held in foreign investments less than 2.5% of the reporting enfity's fotal admitied assets? Yes[ JMo[X]
If response to 4.01 above is yes, responses are not required for interrogatosies 5 - 10,

402 Total admitted assets held in forsign vestments $ 56 683,145 11374 %
403 Foreign-curency-denominated mvestments $ %
404 Inswance iakiiies denommnated in that same foreign currency $ %
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Supplement for the year 2024 of the  SAIF Corporation

SUPPLEMENTAL INVESTMENT RISKS INTERROGATORIES - Continued

3. Aggregate foreign invesiment exposwre categorized by NAIC soversign designation:

1 2
5.04 Couniries designated NAIC 1 % 544 (04 485 T j0.33s
5.02 Couniries designated NAIC 2 % 47 832 504 0.809
5.03 Countries designated NAIC 3 or below $ . gsmpm 0430

B. Largest forign investment exposures by country, categonzed by the country’s NAIC sovereign designation:
Countries designated NAIC 1 1 2
604 Country1:  Cayman lslands % 124,312 404 2.305
.02 CountryZ:  United Kingdom % 75,313,973 1431
Couniries designated NAIC 20
6.03 Country 1. India % 16,478,135 0.313
6.04 CountryZ:  Mexico % 13,586 535 0.258
Countries designated NAIC 3 or below:
6.05 Country1:  Brazi % 2,141,424 0.040
.06 CountryZ:  Colombia % 1,736,064 0.033
1 2z
7. Aggregate unhedged forsign currency exposure
8. Aggregate unhedged forsign currency exposwre categorized by NAIC soversign designaton:
1 2
8.01 Countries designated NAIC 1 $
8.02 Couniries designated NAIC 2 $
8.03 Couniries designated NAIC 3 or below s
9. Largest unhedged foreign currency exposures by country, categonzed by the country’s NAIC soversign designation:
Countrizs designated NAIC 1 1 2
9.01 Country 1: $
9.02 Country 2: $
Couniries designated NAIC 20
9.03 Country 1: $
9.04 Country 2: $
Couniries designated NAIC 3 or below:
9.05 Coundry 1: $
9.06 Country 2: $
10. Ten largest non-soversign (L. non-govermnmental) forsign isswes:
1 2z 3 4
Issuer NAIC Designation

10.01 UBS Growp Funding 1FE % 28 262 330 0.556

10.02 BNP Parieas ZFE % 17,402,085 0.325

10.03 Barclays PLC ZFE % 11,528,744 0.219

10,04 HSEC Hokings FLC 2FE $ 10,956 804 0.208

10.05 Elmwood CLO Ltd 1FE % 10,880,000 0.208

10.068 AERCAP Ireland ZFE % 10,857 182 0.208

10.07 Carlyle Glokal Market 1FE $ 9 540,000 0.189

10.08 Reese Park CLO Lid 1FE % 8,700,000 0.184

10.09 Teva Pharmaceuticals 3FE % 8 204 560 0.175

10.10 720 East CLO Lid 1FE t 9,130,000 0.173
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11, Amounts and percentages of the reporting entity’s total admitied assets held in Canadian invesiments and unhedged Canadian currency exposure:

1.

11.02
1.3
1.0
11.08

12

12.0

12.02 Aggregate statement value of nvestments with contractual sales restrictions

12.03
12.04
12.08

131

130

13.02
13.03
13.04
13.08
13.08
13.07
13.08
13.08
13.10
1311

Supplement for the year 2024 of the SAIF Corporation

SUPPLEMENTAL INVESTMENT RISKS INTERROGATORIES - Continued

Are assets held in Canadian investments less than 2.3% of the reporting enfity's

total admitted asseis?

If response to 11.01 is yes, detai is not required for the remainder of Intesrogatory 11.

Total admitted assets held in Canadian investments
Camnadian-curency-denominated imvesiments
Camadian-dencminated insurance liabiites
Unhedged Canadian currency exposure

Report aggregate amounts and percertages of the reporting entity’s total admitied assets held in imvestments with contractual sales restictions.

Are assets held in investments with contractual sales restriciions less tan 2.5% of the reporting

entity's total admitted assets?

If response to 12.04 is yes, responses are not reguired fior the remainder of Inberrogatory 12.

1

Largest three invesiments with contrachual sales restrictions:

Amounts and perceniages of admitted assets keld in the ten largest equity interests:

Are assets held in eguity interest less than 2.5% of the reporting entity’s tofal admitted assets?

If response to 13.01 is yes, responses ane not reauired fior the remainder of Interrogatoey 13

BlackRock MZC1 ACWI Index Fund
Morgan Stanley Prime Propesty Fund LLC
RREEF America Il LP
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Supplemant for the year ZU24 of the  SAIF Gorporation

SUPPLEMENTAL INVESTMENT RISKS INTERROGATORIES - Continued

14, Amownts and percentages of the reporting entity's total admitied assets held in nonaffiliated, privately placed equities:

1401 Are assels held in nonaffiliated, privately placed equifies less than 2 5% of the reporting entity's fotal admitied assats?

If response to 14.01 above is yes, responses are not reguired for 14.02 frough 14.03.

1
14.02 Aggregate statement valee of nvesiments held in nonaffliated, privately placed equities

Largest three invesiments hald in nonaffiiated, prvately placed eguities:
14.03
14.04
14.05

Ten largest fund managers:

1 2

Fund Manager Total Invested
14.06 BlackRock
14.07 Margan Stankey
14.08 DWS
14.09 State Street Glokal Advisars
14.10
14.11
14.12
14.13
14.14
14.15

524,180,004
134,793,687
114,881,040

13,081,511

L I )

15, Amownts and percentages of the reporting entity's tofal admitted assets held in general pasmership inferests:

151 Are asseis held in general parnership interests less than 2.3% of the reporing entity's total admited assets?

If response fo 15.01 above is yes, responses are not reguired for the remainder of Intzrrogatory 13,

1

15.02 Aggregate statement valee of mvesiments held in general parmership interests
Largest three invesiments i general parmership interests:

15.03

15.04

15.05

16. Amownts and percentages of the reporting entity’s iofal admitted assets held in morigage loans:

16.01 Are mortgage loans reportzd in Schedule B less than 2.5% of the reporting entity’s total admitted assets?

O W LD R A D W O O

If response fo 16.01 above is yes, responses are not reguired for the remainder of Interrogatory 16 and Interrogatory 17.

1
Type (Residential, Commercial, Agricuitural)

16.02
16.03
16.04
16.05
16.06
16.07
16.08
16.09
16.10
16.11
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16.12
16.13
16.14
16.13
16.18

17.

8.0

18.02
18.03
18.04
18.05
18.06

18

19.

19.02

19.03
19.04
19.05

Supplement for the year 2024 of the SAIF Corporation

SUPPLEMENTAL INVESTMENT RISKS INTERROGATORIES - Continued

Amount and percentage of the reporting entity's total admitted assets held in the following categonies of morgage bans:

Construction loans

Mortgage loans over ) days past due
Mortgage loans i the process of foredosue
Martgage loans foreclosed

Restructured morgage loans

W A A W A

Aggregate mortgage loans having the folowing loan-to-value rafios as determined from the most current appraisal as of fe annual staiement date:

Loan-to-Vale Residential Commercial Agricutural
1 2 3 4 3 ]
above 95% $ % § % %
§1% tn 8% $ %8 % %
B15 to B0% $ %8 % %
T1% to B0% $ % f % %
b=low T0% $ % 0§ % %

. Amounts and perceniages of the reporting entity’s fotal admitted assets held in each of the five largest investiments in real estate:

Are assets held in real estate reported less tham 2.5% of the reporting entity's total admitied assets? Yes[X]Ma| ]
I response to 18.01 abowve is yes, responses are not reguired fior the remainder of Interrogatory 18,

Largest five invesiments in any one parcel or group of configuous parcels of real estate.

Descrighon
1 2 3

A% 4 W A

Report aggregate amounts and percentages of the reporting entity’s total admitied assets held in investiments held in mezzanine real estate loans:

Are assets held i irvestments held in mezzanine real estate loans less than 2.5% of the reporting enfity's
total admitted assets? Yes[X]MNof ]

If response to 19.01 is yes, responses are not reguired for the remainder of Interrogatosy 19,

1 2 3
Aggregate statement value of mvestmeris held in mezzanine real estate loans: S

Largest three invesiments held in mezzanine real estate loans:
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20.

20.m

20.m
20.m
20.04
20.05

21. Amownts and percentages of the reporting entity's fofal admitted assets for warrants not attached fo other financial instruments, options, caps, and floors:

Ouned
1 2
21.01 Hedging 5 %%
.02 Income generation 5 ] $
21.03 Other H] % %
22, Amounts and percentages of the reporting entity’s fotal admitted assets of potential exposure for colars, swaps, and forwards:
At Year-end
1stQr
1 2 3

22.01 Hedging 5 % %

2202 Imcome generation 5 % %

22.03 Replications 5 % %

2204 Other $ % %

23. Amounts and percentages of the reporting entity's fndal admitted assets of potential exposure for futures confracts:
At Year-end
1st Qfr
1 2 3

23.01 Hedging 5 % %

23.02 Imcome generation 5 % %

23.03 Replications 5 % %

2304 Other $ % %

Supplement for the year 2024 of the SAIF Corporation

SUPPLEMENTAL INVESTMENT RISKS INTERROGATORIES - Continued

Amounts and perceniages of the reporting entity’s total admitied assets subject to the following types of agreements:

At Year-end
1star
1 z kL
Securities lending agreements (oo not
nclude assets held as collateral for
such framsactions) 162 276,053 3083 W 120,226,264
Repurchase agresments

Reverse repurchase agreemenis
Diollar repurchase agreements

R
L
LR A

Dioilar reverse repurchase agreements
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14
15

17

31
3.2

41
4z
43
44

51
5.2

Annial Satement for e year 2024 ofthe  SAIF Corporation

GENERAL INTERROGATORIES

PART 2 - PROPERTY & CASUALTY INTERROGATORIES

Dioes e reporting endty have any direct Medicare Suppiement Inswrance infonce? Yes[ JMa[X]
1 yes, indicatz premium earned on LS. business only. 5
Whiat portion of Item (1.2) s not reported on e Medicars Supplement Insurance Experience Exhibit? 5
131 Reason for excluding
Indicate amount of sarned premium attributatie to Canadian andior Other Alien not included in Item (1.2) above. 5
Indicate iotal incurred claims on all Medicane Suppiement insurance. 5
Individual poiicies:

st CUmen TYes years:

151  Total premium samed 5

152 Total incumed daims 5

153 Mumber of covered lives

All years pror 1o most cuTent thes years:

154 Total premium samed 5

155 Total incumed daims 5

1556 Mumber of covered lives
Group polices:

st CUmen TYee years:

171 Tolal premium samed 3

172  Total incumed daims 5

173 Mumber of covered lives

Al years phor o most cuTent thres years:

174  Tolal premium samed 5

175 Total incumed daims 5

176  Mumber of covered lives
Healn Test 1 2

Cument Year Prict Year
Premium Mameraior § 5

22 Premium Denominator § 5

23 Premium Rato(2.1/22)

24 Reseve Mumerion 5 5

25  Fesave Denominator § 5

25  Ressnve Ratio(24/25)
Did e reparting entity issue paricipating polcies during the calendar year? Yes[X]Maf |
1 yes, provide the amount of premium witten for participating andior non-participating policies during the calendar year

321 Participating policies 3 550 £27 567

322 Monparicipaing polides 5 B.157 316

. Fior Mutuai reporing entities and Redprocal EXciiangss only:

Doas e reporting ety issus assessable policies? Yes[ Ma[X]
Does e reporting ety issus non-assessabie poiices? Yes[ Ma[X]
I assessable poiicies are issusd, what is the extent of the contingent lisbilty of e poiicyhaiders? %
Total amount of assessments paid of crdered 1o be paid during the year on deposit notes of coningent pramiums. 5
. For Reciprocal Exchanges only:
Doas e xchangs Sppoint kcal agenis? Yes[ Ma[X]
I yes, is the commission paid:
521 Outof Attomiey's-in-Sact compensation Yes[ Mo JMIA[X |
522 Asadirec expense of the exchange Yes[ JMo| IMA[X ]
Wit expensas of the Exchange are not paid out of fhe compensation of the Attomey-in-fact?
Has amy Attomey-in-fact compensation, contingent on futfiliment of certain condiions, been defered? Yes[ IMo[X)

54

6.1

Hyes, give full infrmation

Whiat provision has Tis reporiing entity made b protedt itsel #'om an excessive loss in he event of 3 catastiophe under 3 workers'

compensation conmtract iEsusd without limit loss:

Thee COMEErTy PURCTEsed MEnsUMnCe which provicdes $160 million of CcOvVErage per OMCUTENcE ineXcess of @ $35 milien ressntion, with 3 $15
millicn limit on any one li#2. The Temronsm Risk Insurance Act provides coverage for 1Bmonist events that are nuclear, biclogical, chemical, or
radigiogical in nature, which are excuded fom the reinsurance contract
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62

64

7.1

T2
[
8.1

82

9.1

92

93

54

9.6

Annual SEtement for T2 year 2024 ofthe  SAIF Corporation

GENERAL INTERROGATORIES

PART 2 - PROPERTY & CASUALTY INTERROGATORIES

Describe the method ussd to estimate s reporting entity's probabie maxmum nsurance kas, and identify T2 type of insured exposwes
omprising hat proibabie maximum loss, the lacations of con o THEE BN and the exiemal resowroes (sUch a5

consuking fimms or computer software modeds), if any, used in he estimaton process:

The Company reviewsd results of earhquake modeis and analysis performed by its reinsurance Droker. OOF eXposune 1o Warers'
compensation comprizas the probable maximum loss, and the greatest concenfrations of exposure are in Portland, Salem and along Te
Cregon coast The Company has no exposure 10 property kosses.

Wit peawision has Tis reporiing entity made (such as a catasthophic reirsurance program) b protect itsel from an excessive loss arisng

romi the types and concenirations of iNsUMed EXDOSUNES COMETEng is probable maximum property insurance joss?
NA

Dioes e reporting entty @Iy calastrophe reinsurance proleciion for at least one renstaiement, inan amount suffcient o cover its
estimated probabie magimum loss atriutable fo @ sngle loss event of oCRITenceET

I na, d=scribe any arangements or mechanisms employed by e reporting entity 1o suppiement its catashoone reinsurance program o o
hedge its BXpOSUIE i UNFSNSUed CAtTstonnic oss
N&

Has e reporting endty reinsured any nisk with any ofer entity under a quoia share reinswrance coniract that includes a provision that would
imit T reinsurer's kosses below the siated quot@ share percentage [e.q., @ deductible, 3 loss ratio comidor, 3 koss cap, an aggregate limit

oF Sy simiiar provisions)?

1 yes, indicate Me mumiber of IEMEUTENCE CONTacts containing such provisions.

I yes, does e amount of reinsurance credit ken reflect the reduction in quok share Coverage caused by any appiicabie imitng provision[s)?
Has s repOting entity reinsured any Fsk with any other entity and agresa 10 release Such entity from lability, in whole o in part, #om any
los5 Tl My oecur on TS Fsk, or pertion thereof, reinsured?

1 yes, give full infrmation
NA

Has e reporting entity ceded any risk under any reinsurance contract [or under muifiple contracts with the same refrsurer of its afiates)

for which during the period covensd by the stEiement: (i) it recorded a positive or negative underariing result greater Tian 5% of pror

year-end SUTphes a5 regands pobcyholders of i reported calendar year wiitien premium ceded of year-end kas and D55 SNpETEE MESenes

ceded greater than 5% of prior year-end surpius as regands palicyholders; (i) it accounted for that contract as reinsurance and not as a

depasit; and (i) the contractjs) comtain one of more of the silowing ssatwres o other features that would have similar resuls:

[3) A contract em anger than tao years and he contact i noncancelabie by he reporting entty during T2 contract temt

[b) A limited or condifional cancedlation provision under which cancelation ¥iggers an cbligation by T reporting entity, or an affiiate of the
reporting entity, to enter into @ new r=insuance contract Wit Me reinsurss, or an afiiale of the reinsurer;

[} Aggregate 520p loss FENSUMGNGE COVETAGE;

() A unitateral fight by either party jor both pariies) to commRAS T PRFGUANCE CoNTacY, wheher Conditional of nol, SRCent S such
pEovisions which ane anly figgered by a decline in the credit status of the other party;

&) A prowision pemmitting reporting of losses, of payment of losses, less dequentty than on a quartery basis juniess fese i no acivity
during e period]; o

[Fi Payment schedule, acoumuating retentions from muttisie years or any ssstures inherently designed fo deiay Sming of e reimibursament
1o e ceding enity.

Has e reporting entty during T period covered by Te stalement ceded any risk under any rsnsurance contract (o under muliple

coniracts Wil T2 same reinsurer of its affliales), for which, during the period covered by the siEtement: it reconed a positive or negatve

undewriting resuit grestsr than 5% of pior year-2nd Surpils 25 reqards policyhoiders of i reported Calendar year wWinien premium ceded of

year-end 165 and iss SEDensa Fesanves Cadad greater thal 5% oF Drior year-end SUTpius a5 reqants polcyholders, Suciding Cessons 1o

approved pooling armangements of to captive insurance companies Tiat are direcly of indinectty controling, controlled by, or under common

conirod with (i) one or more unaffiited policyhoiders of the reporting entty, of (ii) an assodation of which one of mors unasiated

policyhoiders of Te reporting entty is a member where:

(@) The written premium ceded to the reinsurer by the reporing entity or its affiistes represents fi%y percent [S0%) o mors of Te enire dredt
and @ssumed premium writien by the reinswer tased on its most recenty avaikble financal stement, or

i) Twenty-five percent [25%) or more of e wiitien premium ceded to the reinsurer has been reffroceded back to the reporing entity of its
liates in a separais rensuance confract

IFyes i 9.1 or 5.2, please provide e sillowing information in e Reinsuranca Summary Supplemental Fiing for General Inemogatony 3

[3) The aggregate Anancial statement impact gross of all such ceded neinswrancs confracts on e balance sheet and statement of income;

(b A Summary of T2 FeinEurance contract i=ms and indicale whether it applies io the conlracts mesting the criesia in 9.1 or 9.2; and

[} A brief discussion of management's princple objectives in entering imo Te reirsurance coriract induding the economic purpose o be
achieved.

Except for fransactions mesing the requirements of paragraph 37 of SSAP Mo, 62R, Property and Casualy Reinsurance, has the
reporting entity ceded any sk under any reinsuranca confract [or muliple contracts with the same reinsuner o its aSiiates) during the
period covered by e #nancal statement and either:

(8) Acoounied for Tiat contract a5 reinsurance (sither prospective of reroacive) under statuiory accounting principies FSAPT and as a

degaosil under generally accepted accounting pringples (MGAAPT; or
) Accounied for Tiat contract as reifsurance under GAAP and as a deposit under SAPT

IFyes io 9.4, explain in the Reinsurance Summary Suppiemental Filing for General intermogatony 9 (Section DY) why e conirachs) = Teated

difersny for GARP and SAR.

‘The reparting entity is sxempt from e Reinswrance Aftestation Supplement undsr one or more of e folowing critedia:

() The entiy does not wilize rensurance; o,

(&) The entity only engages in a 100% quots share contract wit an afiliate snd the affiimed o kead company fas filed an attestation
supplement; or

[c) The eniity has noexismal cessions and only paricioates in an inkercompany pool and the affiliated or lead company has filed an
amestation supplement.
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121

122
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126

132

133

141

142

143

142

145

15.1

152

16.1

Annual SEtement for e year 2024 ofthe  SAIF Corporation

GENERAL INTERROGATORIES

PART 2 - PROPERTY & CASUALTY INTERROGATORIES

I the reporing entity has assumed risks from anotner entity, there should e changed on ccount of SUCH FEFSUENCES 3 reserve equal
‘1o that which the cnginal entity would have been requinsd 10 change had it retained the risks. Has this been done?

Has e reporting endity guarantesd policies issued by any oiher entity and now in force:
I yes, give full information

I the reporing entity reconded acorued reffospecive PEmIUmS on iNsUrance contracts on Line 15.3 of e asset schedule, Page 2, staie e
amauni of comesgonding liabilities reconed for:

1211 Unpaid losses

12.12 Unpaid underariting expenses (inciuding loss adusiment expenses)
O the amount on Line 15.3, Page 2, state the amoum Tat is secured by letters of credit, collateral and other funds?

I the reporing entity undenwriss commertial insurance risks, SUCH 35 WOINErS' COMpensation, are DREmMIUm NOEs O PRomissory notes
accepled from its insuweds covering unpaid Premiums andior unpaid losses?
1 yes, provide the range of intenest rates charged under such notes during e pericd covered by Tis sEhement

1241 From

1242 To
Are leners of credit of colateral and other funds received from insuneds being uilized by Te reporting entty 10 SECUNe premium noles or
promissony noles Bken by a reparing entity or b Secune amy of the reporing entity's reported direct unpaid koss resenves, inciuding unpaid
a5es under lss deducible features of commencial policiesT
I yes, siaie e amount thereod 3t December 31 of current year:

1261 Letiers of Credit
12.62 Coliateral and other funds

Larges! net aggregale amaunt nsured in any one sk (Excluding wokErs' compensation):

Does any reinsurance contract considered in Te calculation of this amount include an aggregate limit of recovery without also induding a
reinstatement provision?

Siate e number of reifsurance confracts (exduding ndividual taculiative risk certificates, but induding faculiatve programs, aulomatic
facilities or facultadve obligaiory contracts) considersd in the caiculation of e amount.

Is the company a cedant in a multipie cedant reisurance coniract?

I yes, plearse descrbe the method of aliocating and reconding reinsurance among the cedants:

I the answer 1o 14.1 is yes, ane the methods described i item 14.2 entirely contained in Te respective mulple cedant reEnsurance
moniracts?

IFthe answer 1o 14.3 is no, are all the methods described in 14.2 entirely contained in written agreements?

I the answer iz 14.4 is no, please expiain;

Has e reporting endity guarantesd any Snanced premium acoounsT

I yes, give full information

Does e repoiting eniity wiile any warmanty business?
I yes, disciose the soilswing information for each of the folowing Types of wamanty Coverage:

1 2 3 4 5

Direc] Losses Dired Losses Direct \Writlen [Direct Premium [Dinect Premium
Incumed Unpaid Premium Uneamed Earned
16.11 Home § § § H] §
16.12 Producs: § § § § §
1613 Auomoile § 5 5 1 5
16.14 Cmer § 5 5 1 5
* Disciose hype of COVErage:
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Yes[X]No[ WAL |

Yes[ [Na[X]
5 13,673,157
5 36,035,902
5 104,121
Yes[X]ha[ [NA[ ]
20 %
1200 %
Yes[ [Na[X]
5
5
§
Yes[ [Na[X]
Yes[ [Na[X]
Yes[ N[ ]
Yes[ N[ ]
Yes[ [Na[X]
Yes[ [Na[X]



Annual Stement for e year 2024 ofthe  SAIF Corporation

GENERAL INTERROGATORIES

PART 2 - PROPERTY & CASUALTY INTERROGATORIES

17.1 Does Te reporting endity include amounts recoverable on unauthonzed reinsurance in Schedule F - Part 3 that is exsmpt #om the

18.1

182

18.3

18.4

1.

191

siafutory provision for unauthorized reinsurance?

Incurred but not reponsd losses on CONYaCs in Srce prior 10 July 1, 1984, and not subsequently renewed ane exempd fom the statmory
prosision for unauThorized reinswance. Provide the folmwing information for his exemption:

17.11 Gross amount of unauthorized reinsurance in Schedule F - Pan 3
ex=mpt from e stEhutony provision for unauthorized reinsurance

17.12 Unfunded portion of Intemogatory 17.11

17.13 Paid losses and loss adjustment expenses portion of Imssogaiory 17.11

17.44 Casa resarves portion of Infemogatony 17.11

1715 IncurTed but not repored partion of Intsmogatony 17.11

17.96 Uneamed premium porion of Inemogatory 17.11

17.17 Contingen commission poron of Intemogaiony 17.11

Do you act as a cusiodian for health 5avings accounts?

If yes, plesase provide i amount of cusiodial Sands held & of the reporting date.

D you 3ct a5 an adminisiraior for health savings accounts?

IF yes, plecse provide T balance of Tie Snds admirstensd as of the reporing date.

15 thee neporting enity licensed or chartensd, registersd, qualified, eligible or wiiting business in at least two states?

1 N, does the reporting entty assume reinsurance business that cowers nsks residing in a1 least one state other Tan Te state of domicie
of the reporiing entity?
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LU L

Yes[ JMa[X]
Yes[ JMa[X]
Yes[ [No[X]
Yes[ JMa[X]

Yes[X)Na[ INAL )
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